
 

 

Infrastructure Task Force 
Lancaster County 

 
Tuesday, September 18, 2018    10:30 AM 

Lancaster County Extension  

444 Cherrycreek Road Suite A, Room A 

 

Agenda 
 

 
Introductions / Sign-In 
 
Review of Survey Results 
 
Review of Recommendations 
 
Discussion of Next Steps 

 



Page 1 of 3 

 

MINUTES 
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

INFRASTRUCTURE TASK FORCE MEETING 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 – 10:30 A.M. 

LANCASTER COUNTY EXTENSION OFFICE 
444 CHERRYCREEK DRIVE, ROOM B, LINCOLN, NE 

 
Task Force Members Present: Debby Brehm, Lincoln Independent Business 
Association (LIBA); Rod Hollman, Agriculture Representative; Brian Maschmann, Norris 
Public School District; DaNay Kalkowski, Attorney; Joe Bolubasz, Midwest Bank; Nathan 
Boone, JEO Consulting Group; Silas Clarke, City of Hickman Administrator; Jennifer 
Brinkman, Lancaster County Commissioner; Roma Amundson, Lancaster County 
Commissioner; Michael Werner, City of Waverly Mayor; Pam Dingman, Lancaster 
County Engineer; Jeff McKerrow, Olsson Associates; Russell Miller, Nebraska Recycling 
Center  
 
Task Force Members Absent: Jess Baker, Wilderness Construction; Lonnie Burklund, 
City of Lincoln, Public Works and Utilities, Jeffrey Butterfield, RBC Wealth Management; 
Glynnis Collins, Spring Creek Prairie Audubon Center Director; Nick Cusick, Bison, Inc.; 
Craig Gana, Gana Trucking; Doug Hanson, City of Hickman Mayor; Ray Stevens, Lower 
Platte South Natural Resources District (LPSNRD); Miranda Watson, Woods Bros. 
 
Others Present: Dustin Antenello, LIBA; LeRoy Geistlinger, Lancaster County Assistant 
Road Maintenance Superintendent; Deb Schorr, Lancaster County Commissioner; Bill 
Avery, Lancaster County Commissioner; Nancy Hicks, Lincoln Journal Star; Larry Legg, 
Roadway Design Engineer, Lancaster County Engineering; Todd Wiltgen, Lancaster 
County Commissioner; David Cary, Director, Lincoln/Lancaster County Planning 
Department; Nick Weander, Olsson Associates; Leslie Brestel, Lancaster County Clerk’s 
Office 
 
Advance public notice of the Infrastructure Task Force meeting was posted on the 
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, website on 
September 17, 2018.  
 

The meeting was opened at 10:42 a.m.   
 
Jeff McKerrow, Olsson Associates, reviewed the PowerPoint presentation (Exhibit A).  
The Task force’s purpose was to review the transportation infrastructure in Lancaster 
County, to understand how it is funded, identify existing and future needs, define goals 
for the County, review best practices, and close the gap in future needs and available 
resources.  He stated Lancaster County is not alone in that the structure needs outpace 
the funds.   
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

McKerrow said the survey participants revealed support for the following prioritizations 
to consider when replacing or closing a bridge: traffic volumes, length of detour 
resulting from a closure, access to co-op grain locations and access to schools.  Survey 
participants also showed support for a community-wide sales tax which would also 
apply to municipalities who do not have a sales tax today. A large percentage of those 
funds would come from vehicle sales. 
 
Wiltgen entered the meeting at 11:04 a.m. 
 
McKerrow opened the meeting for questions and discussion. 
 
Pam Dingman, Lancaster County Engineer, thanked everyone for their time and interest 
in the Task Force.  Dingman stated she will be participating on committees with the 
National Institute of Rural Transportation.  She also said the University of Nebraska- 
Lincoln (UNL) received a grant from the National Science Foundation for data pipelines 
for Aging Rural Bridge Transportation Infrastructure and she has met with twenty 
engineering professors to discuss rural infrastructure. 
 
Rod Hollman, Agriculture Representative, asked about the section of the report that 
compared similar sized counties and their revenue sources.  McKerrow said the study 
looked at revenue per mile of county roadway and not the revenue sources.  
 
Regarding the role of the Natural Resources District (NRD), Dingman reported the 
County has two Wilderness Park projects under interlocal agreements with the City of 
Lincoln Storm Water Management and the NRD to stabilize the bridge at Old Cheney 
and West Pioneers and to build a drop structure at the edge of the bridge to lock in the 
bottom of the creek.  She has been working for eighteen months with the NRD and 
Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) to relocate a road around Dam 3A.   
 
Hollman asked for reasoning behind the hiring of contractors versus Lancaster County 
employees for work on culverts and repairs.  Dingman said the County works on the 
smaller culverts with the district crew.  The bridge crew takes care of bridge, small pipe, 
and asphalt repair.  Construction that requires large pipes or a complex plan are 
contracted. 
 
Hollman stated he would be in favor of wheel tax, County fuel or sales tax as additional 
revenue sources.   
 
Avery exited the meeting at 11:15 a.m.  
 
Debby Brehm, Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA), asked the County 
Board members if they would be supportive of a County wheel tax and if they thought 
there was enough support in the County for such a tax. Jennifer Brinkman, Lancaster 
County Commissioner, said the purpose of the Task Force is not to identity how to 



Page 3 of 3 

 

determine extra revenue for infrastructure but to determine a usable baseline for 
funding options.  She felt there needs to be a coalition created to support revenue 
sources.  Roma Amundson, Lancaster County Commissioner, felt a wheel tax is one of 
the ways to go.  Todd Wiltgen, Lancaster County Commissioner, echoed Brinkman and 
added the County residents should be asked for their opinions.  Deb Schorr, Lancaster 
County Commissioner, said if there is a County-wide initiative, Hickman and Waverly 
need a guaranteed percentage of funds from the revenue source(s) for their own local 
infrastructure needs as those communities grow.  Schorr stated the Nebraska 
Association of County Officials (NACO) has discussed proposing legislation on the 
possibility of bonding for permanent structures other than those for public safety.   
 
Hollman asked if Railroad Transportation Safety District (RTSD) funds could be used.  
Schorr stated that statutorily RTSD funds can only be used for railroad safety crossings. 
Wiltgen added that $20,000,000 from the RTSD budget has been allocated to the South 
Beltway project.  
 
Michael Werner, City of Waverly Mayor, said he is in favor of a wheel tax where 
agricultural use vehicles could have some exemption.  Currently to cover a bond, levies 
must be substantially raised to do what a wheel tax could do easier.   
 
Russell Miller, Nebraska Recycling Center, asked if the $9,000,000 funding gap is a 
yearly amount.  McKerrow answered it is a $9,000,000 yearly shortfall. 
 
Silas Clarke, City of Hickman Administrator, urged the County leaders to move the 
findings from the Task Force forward for a solution.  Brinkman said the results of the 
Task Force’s work are being seen at the County level in the form of safety studies, One 
and Six Year Roads and Bridge plan, and additional staffing for the County Engineer’s 
Office.  Amundson explained the County’s fee structure and how it relates to existing 
legislation.  She urged support of future legislation to allow counties to set fees. 
 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 11:58 a.m.  
 
Submitted by Leslie Brestel, Lancaster County Clerk’s Office 






























































































































































































































































































































